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THE SIGMA TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors’ report of the
Charitable Company for the period 1st September 2020 to 31st August 2021. The Annual Report serves the
purpose of both a Trustees’ report, and a directors’ report under company law.

As at 31st August 2021, the Trust operated four primary academies, of which one includes a nursery provision,
gight secondary academies, four of which offer post 16 provision. All our academies serve a caichment area in
the Colchester and Tendring locality. The Trust has a combined net Pupil Capacity of 12,938 and had a number
on roll of 10,934 in the Autumn 2021 census an increase of 274 in 2020.

The Sigma Trust academies are:

. Alton Park Junior School ~ 7-11 provision ~ Rebrokered in October 2019

. Clacton County High School ~ 11-19 provision (16-19 provision delivered at the Tendring Education
Centre)

The Colne Community School and College ~ 11-18 provision Rebrokered in January 2019
Harwich and Dovercourt High School ~ 11-18 provision ~ Rebrokered in June 2017
Holland Park Primary School ~ 4-11 provision ~ Rebrokered in October 2019

Monkwick Infant & Nursery School ~ 2-7 provision {Including Nursery)

Monkwick Junior Scheol ~ 7-11 provision

Paxman Academy, Free School ~ 11-16 Provision ~ Free School Opened September 2019
Philip Morant School and College ~ 11-18 provision ~ rebrokered in January 2019

St Helena School ~ 11-16 provision

The Stanway School ~ 11-16 provision

The Thomas Lord Audley Scheol ~ 11-16 provision

The Sigma Trust is also the legal entity for the North Essex Teacher Training, an initial teacher training scheme.
Structure, Governance and Management

Constiiution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The Charitable Company's
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust.

The Trustess of The Sigma Trust are also the Directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of company
law. The Charitable Company cperates as The Sigma Trust.

The Sigma Trust trading institutions are:

. Altan Park Junior School

Clacton County High School

Colne Community School and College
Harwich and Dovercourt High School
Holland Park Primary School
Monkwick infant School & Nursery
Monkwick Junior School

Paxman Academy

Philip Morant School and College

St Helena School

The Stanway School

. The Thomas Lord Audiey Schoal

. North Essex Teacher Training (NETT)

Details of the Trustees who served throughout the year, and to the date these accounts are approved, are
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THE SIGMA TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.
Members’ Liability

Each member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Charitable Company in
the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease io be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased
to be a member.

Trustees’ indemnities

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 s236 the Trust has purchased Trustees’ Liability Insurance to
protect the Trustees and Officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors ar omissions whilst on Trust
business. The cover under the policy is £10 million; this is held with the Educaticn Skills Funding Agency's Risk
Pratection Arrangement. In the pericd under review there have been no claims made against this policy.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

The Academy Board of Trustees shall comprise of no less than three Trustees and not be subjected to any
maximum. As per the Articles of Association, the Academy Trust will endeavour ta set the following structure,

Up to eight Trustees {to be elected and confirmed by the Members)

The Chief Executive Officer (providing that the CEQ agrees to act, appointed by the Members)

The Academy Trust may appoint up to three co-opted Trustees under Article 58.

A minimum of two Parent Trustees if no Local Governing Boards are established.

Up to a maximum of cne third of Trustees fo be employees, including the CEO if they choose to act.

* & s 8 »

The Sigma Trust has established Local Governance Committees (LGCs) and each LGC has a minimum of two
parent Governors.

All Trustees are appointed for a four-year period and are able 1o be re-slected continually every four years
subject io remaining eligible to be a particular type of Trustee; any Trustee may be reappointed or re-elected at a
general meeting. A Parent Trustee will remain eligibie for re-appointment while they continue to have children at
a Trust school.

The Trust had four Members as at 31st August 2021.The Trust will undergo a recruitment process in the autumn
term to return membership to five serving Members. An employee of the Trust is not eligible to hold the post of a
Member. Appointment to the position of Member must be made by the majority of remaining Members and
subject to the signing of written consent to become a Member and entered into the Register of Members.

The Members meet at least twice per year to receive Trust updates from the Chair of Trustees and the CEO.
The Members also hold and attend the Annual General Meeting (AGM} in December to receive the Financial
Statements and Trustees Repott.

When the need arises to fill a vacant Trustee position on the Board, the Members take this opportunity to review
the skills within the remaining body and look to complement any perceived skills shortage with new Trustees
pertaining those attributes, this may be through targeted appreaches to known individuals, canvassing letters to
relevant industry fields, recruitment via the DfE's Academy Ambassadors programme or recruitment events
advertised in local media. Any potential Trustees are then ‘interviewed’ by a Memiber and Trustee to ensure the
appropriate skills reguired are evident during this process.

The Trustees have established Local Governance Committees {LGCs) for its academies which will be directly
accountable to the Trustees. Article 100 of the Aricles of Association provides for the appoiniment by the
Trustees of commitiees (including LGCs) to whom the Trustees may delegate certain functions of the Trustees.
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THE SIGMA TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPCRT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The composition of an Academy LGC shall be agreed between the Trust and the Local Governance Commitise
but shall include:

No fess than nine and no more than fifteen members

At least two parent members

The Headteacher of the relevant academy or academies

A maximum of a third of its members 1o be employses of The Sigma Trust, unless co-opted by the Board
of Trustees.

¢ =+ a a

The first LGC will be established by the Board of Trustees. Thereafter each LGGC will propose future members,
subject to formal appointment by the Trustees, delegated to the CEQ. Whilst each LGC will look to recruit its own
members, it is the responsibility of the Trust Board both to appoint and, should it ever be required, to dismiss
individual LGC members.

The Trustees shall have the right {but shall not be required) to direct that any one member or all members of the
LGC resign their post(s). Every individual LGC member will be required to make an application and self-
evaluation of skills and expetience as part of the application process.

The Trustees will appoint the Chair of each LGC for an initial period of three years. Members of LGCs are
appointed for a three-year term in the first instance. Thereafter, a member may pui themselves forward for
reappointment. This will be subject to the agreement of the Trustess and delegated to the CEO for approval.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees and LGC members

New Trustees attend an induction meeting with the CEQ and Chair of the Trustees to understand the role and
expectations to support and challenge the Trust. All Trustees undertake training as appropriate to their work at
the Trust and the relevant responsibility of which they may undertake. For the academic year 2020-21 a full
schedule of fraining and development sessions were arranged and delivered via on-line platforms,

The Chair of the Trustees meets termly with LGC Chairs to share best practice, arrange relevant collaborative
Trust training sessions and share information and views for both LGCs and Trustees.

Organisational Structure

The Trustees are responsible for the overall management and control of the Trust, its academies and the
Teacher Training Scheme (NETT).

The Trustees have established a clear structure o delegate strategic and operational management to the Trust's
Chief Executive Officer (CEQ). The CEQ is supported directly by a senior Management team of five, a Chief
Operations & Finance Officer (COFO), a Director of Education, an Assistant Director of Education, an Executive
Head and the Chief Administrative Officer, Day to day management of the academies is delegated to the

Headteachers, and the management of the NETT Teacher Training Scheme is delegated to the Programme
Director.

The CEOQ is the Trust Accounting Officer and has overall responsibility for the appropriate use of the Trust's
funding. The Executive Committee, which consists of the Headteachers of each academy, the Primary
Executive Lead, COFO and CAO meets at least monthly with the CEC and addresses both day to day and
strategic planning to ensure the Trust can achieve the Trust's Strategic Improvement Plan. The CEO has
responsibility for ensuring the Trust’s Strategic Improvement Flan is delivered and that the Trust's Plan is
embedded within each individual academy’s Strategic Improvement Plans.

During the financial year, the Covid 19 pandemic continued to have a significant impact on the realistic outcomes
of the Trust's Improvement Plan. The Trust's Covid response and recovery plans have continued to have a major
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THE SIGMA TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee}

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

impact on the direction of the Trust and abscrbed a significant amount of financial and personnel resources over
the operating period.

The day to day procedures of the Trust and its academies are managed in line with the relevant policies
approved by the Board of Trustees or associated committees. Academy expenditure is managed in line with the
Finance Regulations and the approved budget.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The setting of remuneration for all Trust employees, including the Chief Executive Officer, is based on nationally
agreed pay and conditions. The Trust has established employment policies including a Pay Policy and
Performance Management Policy, these policies are in place for all Trust employees.

As identified in the Trust's Pay Policy, the leadership and management team'’s remuneration is based on the
criteria set out in the nationally agresd Pay and Conditions documents and is benchmarked against the naticnally
agreed leadership pay ranges. The Headteachers’ pay ranges are based on the established group size for an
academy, these are then reviewed in light of any additional responsibilities undertaken by the Headteachers such
as support for other schools. Other leadership salaties are determined by the LGCs in collaboration with the
Trust's CEO ensuring that responsibilities are remunerated in a fair and transparent manner and that there are
sufficient differentials between each tier of management.

All staffing; including key personnel, are subiect to robust, evidence-based performance management processes
and these are monitored by the established Pay Committess and the CEO. When reviewing staffing structures,
reviews of the successes and challenges of the academies, as weil as value for money are considered against
expended funds on leadership staffing costs.

An external professional advisor is used within the perfermance management process for all academy
Headteachers and the CEO. A full report is provided to the Board of Trusiees for the approval of the
remuneration for the Trust's Headteachers and GEO.

The Trustees do not offer ‘bonus’ or ‘gratuity’ payments to any staff, including key management.
Trade Union Facility Time
Relevant Unicn Officials

Number of employees who were relevant union cfficials during the relevant period ~ 21
Full-time equivalent employee number ~ 17.02

Percentage of time spent on facility time
0% ~ 17

1-50% ~ 4

51-99% ~ 0

100% ~ 0

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility time ~ £11,145

Total pay bill ~ £55,894,476

Percentage of the total pay bill spent on faciiity time ~ 0.020%

Paid trade union activities
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time hours ~ 0%

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations
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THE SIGMA TRUST
{A company limited by guaranteg)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

To support the Trust achieve agreed objectives, the Trust and associated academies ligise with like-minded
organisations such as the Local Authority, other Government affiliated partners and Department for Education
associated bodies as well as many other local educational providers, local schools and higher educaticnal
providers.

The Sigma Trust is also the recognised lega! entity by the Department for Education for the North Essex Teacher
Training (NETT) scheme. The Trustees have established an ITT Strategic Board to have oversight of the
schems.

The CEO leads the NETT Director to operate the scheme in line with the guidance and expectations set out by
the DfE and ESFA. The financial and governance policies for the NETT scheme are embedded within the Trust's
policies and procedures.

The four Trust 16-18 academies also work in partnership with other local 16-18 secondary schools in the locality
and Essex University to form the VI8 initiative. This collaboration enables the sharing of best teaching and the
generation of the broadest curriculum offer of minerity subjects which could not be offered viably in a single
institution.

All academies within the Trust are members of either ASHE {Association of Secondary Headteachers in Essex)
or EPHA (Essex Primary Headteachers’ Association). These two groups allow the sharing of best practice,
educational policy changes and a route for information and guidance tc be shared directly from Essex County
Council to Headteachers.

The Trust subscribes to The Confederation of School Trusts (CST) and the Natichal Governors Association
(NGA).

The Academies have operational connections with Colchester's ITT provision, CTTC, a national teacher
recruitment and training scheme ‘“Teach First’ and an alternative education provider; NEECA.

The Trust works in collaboration with the Learning Pathways Academy Trust for the provision of primary school
improvement and executive leadership support at the Trust’'s Primary Schools.

Engagement with empleyees

The Sigma Trust has a Joint Consultative Committee (JCC) arrangement which has been signed up to by all
recognised Teacher and Support Staff Trade Unions. This forum meets at least termly or as required following
any significant change proposed by the Trust. Where appropriate, The Sigma Trust consults on matters such as
policy, Pay, Health, Safety and Welfare or any other identified significant change. The Trust generally provides
information to employees by way of email, newsletters and intranet.

There are appropriate communication forums and structured meetings within the Trust's organisational
structures to ensure the relevant communications take place between the Members and the Trustees and the
Trustees and the LGCs.

The Headteachers of all the Trust’s academies meet monthly with the central team to ensure all strategic and
operational activities are communicated effectively, and each academy has sufficient structures to ensure
effective schoocl improvement and communication takes place.

Equal Opportunities and Disabled persons

The Sigma Trust’s policy is to ensure equality of opportunities is afforded to all staff, students and stakeholders.
Training, career development and promotion opportunities are available to all employees.

Disabled persons are afforded full and fair consideration in all employment practices and recruitment
procedures. In the event of employees becoming disabled during employment every effort is made to support the
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THE SIGMA TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

employee to continue with their existing role including training and work based modifications.
Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the trust

The Sigma Trust undertakes continuous reviews and communication with all suppliers, pariners and community
stakeholders. The Trustees adopted Vision and Values ensure that Integrity, Accountability and Respect is
fostered in all our objectives and activities. The Trust selects suppliers predominantly from Government
frameworks, known education and public sector suppliers or via recommendations from other like minded Trusts
or public sector organisations. To ensure the Trust maintains its integrity, robust procurement procedures have
been adopted and reviews completed by the internal and external auditors.

The Trust maintains strong business relationships with the local councils, local authority and the Regional

Schools Gommissioners Office, as well as other local and regional education providers and Multi Academy
Trusts.

The Trust ensures, via the Executive Team, that individual schools provide appropriate mediums for
communication with Staff, Parents and Students, via Letters, Websites, face to face communication and other
literature such as progress reports and parent communication evenings.

Ohbhjectives and Activities

Objects and Aims

The Sigma Trust's main objectives are encompassed in our mission statement, our vision and our values:

Mission

To be "Greater Than the Sum of Its Parts" represents the mission statement for The Sigma Trust. We believe we
are stronger and more successful working together than we would be as separate institutions.

The mission for each academy within The Sigma Trust is to ensure that no child is left behind.

Education should foster in its learners a curiosity to discover who they are and what they are capable of, together
with developing the resilience for them to test the boundaries of their abilities, and build the skills necessary 1o
face the future with confidence.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities
Our main objeciives for our Trust is established within our Vision.

Our vision is to ensure that all of our academies are at least “Good” with strong and improving outcomes and are
able to demonstrate ocutstanding provision. We will achieve this by:

. Establishing a local family of academies that fully embrace the mission, vision and values of the Trust.
. Ensuring that best practice becomes shared practice so that no school is left behind.
. Recognising the unigueness and achievements of each academy.

. Enabling every school to be a giver and receiver of support.

. Developing a relationship where autonomy and accountability go hand in hand.

. Creating a centre of educational excellence and innovation within the area.

. Working in collaboration with others to enhance the educational expetrience of children in the community.

. Training, recruiting and retaining teachers, leaders and support staff through high guality professional
development.

. Requiring that services are delivered efficiently and represent outstanding value for money.

We aim to achieve these objectives by ensuring strong and effective leadership is embedded acress all our
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THE SIGMA TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

academies and within the central team. Ensuring every available resource is provided to our leaders and that by
working collaboratively no child is left behind.

Public Benefit
The Sigma Trust is a charitable trust which seeks to bensfit the public through the pursuit of its stated aims.

In setting our objectives and planning our activities the Trustees have carsfully considered the Charity
Commission’s general guidance on public benefit,

Achievements and Performance

. A full programme of leadership support at Alton Park Junior School and Holland Park Primary School.

’ Significant student growth in post 16 to both ‘Sigma Sixth’ and Philip Morant School & College.

. Full Plans approved by the Regional Schools Commissioner and Essex County Council for the expansion
of the Colne Community School & College.

. Third successive year of full subscription to the Paxman Academy free school

: Confirmation for continuation for the pilot ‘Secondary Grow’ unit funded by ECGC for the north Essex area.

. Continuation of the high quality of home learning provision for all students within the Sigma community
during the second Covid 19 national lockdown. B , . -

J Continued to ensure all Sigma students, staff and establishments were safe and Covid secure for the
partial openings and for the full openings of scheols during the academic year.

. Delivery of on-site learning and care for vulnerable and key worker students during the second Covid 19
national lockdown.

° Replacement of two ¢1970s dilapidated classrooms at Holland Park Primary School to a fully net zero
modular building including the receipt of £108k of section 106 additional monies.

. Full refurbishment of over 30 classroems and corridor areas at Monkwick Infant & Nursery School, The St

Helena Scheol and The Thomas Lord Audley School over the summer holidays enhancing the learning
environment.

. Complete refurbishment, remodel and installation of the kitchen areas and equipment at bath Monkwick
Junior School and Alton Park Junior School, an investment of over £500k on both projects.

. Successful completion of £800k of refurbishment and project works at the Philip Morant School & College,
including, full refurbishment of Art, Maths and MFL learning spaces and replacement of over 1900m2 of
roofing.

Key Performance Indicators

The Sigma Trust is commitied to observing the importance of performance indicators and to ensure that it
continues to strive for both educational and financial excellence.

Primary Academy KPls

p Sep-16 Gl Ct-
Re-brokered Converter Re-brokered Re-brokered
7-11 2-7 7-11 4-11
Requires improvement Good No current report No current report
Good - Personal
Development, Behaviour
and Welfare
Jul-18 Jun-19 Feb-1g Jan-19
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Due to the continuing Covid-19 Pandemic no student performance data was obtained for this academic year and no
primary age child undettook any national testing.

Secondary Academy KPls

SEH0 1:50Y
Sep-16 Jun-17 Sep-16 Sep-16
Convertor Re-brokered ‘ Convertor Convertor

11-18 11-18 11-16 11-16

Good Outstanding - Good Good Good
Leadership, Post 16
Sep-18 Sep-21 Dee-17 Mar-17

Sep-16 Jan-19 Sep-18
Convertor Re-brokered Re-brokered Free School
11-16 11-18 11-18 11-16
Good No curtent report Ne current report N/A
Predecessor - Predecessor -
Inadequate Inadeguate

Feb-20 May-18 May-18 N/A
Hepactio
Financial Key Performance Indicators 2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021
Total Income Per Pupil £6,011 £6,413 £6,214 £6,409
GAG/Grant income per pupil £5,120 £5,368 £5,650 £5,569
Staff costs as % total income 77.83% 80.27% 83.81% 83.24%
Staff costs as % GAG/Grant Income 91.38% 89.98% 88.01% 87%
Staff costs as % total expenses 73.98% 87.43% 76.73% 77.64%
Teaching staff costs as % total staff costs 68.72% 75.91% 62.6% 62.8%
Cash as % total income 23.62% 21.89% 17.23% 17.91%
Current assets to current liabilities ratio 3.04 3.72 2.65 2.73

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Trust and its
affiliated schools have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For
this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details
regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Accounting Policies note of the financial
statements.

Promoting the Success of the Company

The Trust has adopted a Mission statement aiong with our Vision and Values that are transparent and in line with
the company's objectives. The Trust's Values are disseminated across the entire organisation and embedded
within all activities and decisions made by Trustees, Officers and employees. The Trust operates within the
framework of openness and transparency and utilises data available from open sources such as the Trust's own
Websites, Companies House, Ofsted and financial and attainment data from the various .gov websites

Financial Review

The majority of the Trust's income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form
of recurrent grants, ihe use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA
during the period ended 31 August 2021 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the
statement of financial activities.

Page 10




THE SIGMA TRUST
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

During the period ended 31 August 2021, recurrent expenditure exceeded income by £1,821,705.

The balance sheet includes a liability of £46,104,000 in relation to the Academy's FRS 102 disclosure of the
Local Government Pension Scheme (see note for further details).

All Trust accounting policies have been consulied on and implemented with sound levels of financial
autharisation.

Included within the figures for the financial year is a carried forward amount of £411,319 of unspent Covid 19
catch up funding which will be applied to the 2021-22 academic year and unspent earmarked funds of £243,450
for the furniture, fixture and fittings for the expansion and Free schogl projects.

The Trust’'s School Condition Allocation for 2020-21 was around £2.7million. This, along with additional revenus
funding and other earmarked grants from Essex County Council, allowed the Trust to continue with its
investment strategy into improving the quality of its estates and learning environments for our students. This
year's fixed asset additions were £3,855,455.

Due to the on-going Covid 19 pandemic the Trust followed the Government's advice and where required
provided home learning options for students within the Trust. For students eligible for free school meals, the
Trust obtained the services of Wonde up until the national free school meal program with Edenred was
reintroduced. The Trust implemented the recommendation of the Government's Procurement Policy Notes PPN
04/20 and ensured assessments were carried out for suppliers and contractors. No payments were required 1o
be made by the Trust under the PPN 04/20 for services which did not take place during the partial closure period

within this financial year. The Trust also followed the Foreign & Commonwealth Office advice on travel
restrictions.

The Trust received £830,212 in relation to Covid catch up funding, all academies produced action plans
identifying planned expenditure and educational impact, these plans were approved by Trustees.

Reserves Policy

The Trustees consider it essential to maintain a level of useable reserves, which is sufficient to meet the
requirements of any unexpected and unplanned financial expenditure so that the Trust's primary ohjective is
maintained, while at the same time ensuring that it uses its funding to the benefit of students on roll at the time
funding is issued.

In deciding the level of reserves for this financial year Trustees have considered the following:

. Short/medium term impact of additional costs linked to addressing the Covid-18 Pandemic.

. Reduction in Nursery placement uptake in Monkwick Infant & Nursery Schoal, including transition to the
Monkwick Junior School

. Continual growth in the post 16 provision and associated lagged funding.

. Uncertainty and concern aver the affordahility of the PFI contract over the leng term, at Clacton County
High School.

. Unknown or unexpected condition issues within the Trust’s estate

. Educational or safeguarding concerns within one or more of the Trust's academies

. Uncertainty over future national funding for education

The Trust is holding free reserves of £5,877,242 which is an unrestricted general reserve fund. The Trustess
have determined its Primary Schoois should achieve a 9% of GAG reserve level and Secondaries 7%. For 2021-
22 the minimum level of reserves required to be held by the Trust has been set at £4,334,164. This equates to
7.18% of expected GAG.

The unrestricted (designated and general) reserves and the restricted income funds of the Trust have increased
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

from £6,830,421 as at 31st August 2020 to £8,782,086 as at 31st August 2021, which represents an increase of
£1,951,665. Of this figure £438,001 is carried forward Covid 19 Catch-up’ funding or earmarked PPG funding.
These funds will be expended in the 2021-22 financial year.

Of the £8,782,086 reserves as at 31st August 2021 the Trustees continue to work on straiegic plans for the
following investment projects planned across the Trust in 2021-2022:

3 FE expansion at the Clacton County High Schoal site.

2 FE expansion at Colne Community School & College.

Proposed sale of ‘The Grange’ property at Harwich and Dovercourt High School.
Significant premises improvements at The Thomas Lord Audley School.

Continuation of roofing and mechanical infrastructure replacement across all Trust schools
Investment in curriculum resources across the Trust

Additional over staffing capacity in identified areas

a © ® 3 o = @

The Trustees consider, with the investment in projects listed above and the risks and uncerainties outlined
elsewhere in this report, the level of reserves held by the Trust to be appropriate for the size of our erganisation.

The balance sheet includes a liability of £46,104,000 in relation to the Trust's FRS 102 disclosure of the Local
Government Pension Scheme (see pensions note for further details}.

The fixed asset reserve fund also stands at £117,911,216 as at 31 August 2021, £117,309,207 of which could
not be realised without disposing of tangible fixed assets.

Invesiment Policy

The Trustees acknowledge the need to consider maximising any potential for income from reserves held by the

Trust, however, it also acknowledges the reguirement to ensure these funds are invested in any no risk
opportunities.

The Trust uses a bank account which was approved by the Trustees and maintains a balance in that account
that is sufficient to cover immediate and forthcoming financial commitments.

Monies surplus to these requirements are invested in £1million deposits on a one-year fixed term account, relling
3 monthly cycles. Due to the continually reducing available interest rates, the Trust has utilised both a 32 day and
95 day Notice Deposit Accounts. The remaining funds are placed in a savings account which is operated by the
Trust to maximise the reserves. These deposits are all low risk options.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Sigma Trust's risk management processes aim to minimise the perceived risk to the Trust. The main
current risk of any materiality relates to the deficit the Trust holds in the Local Government Pension Scheme.
Monthly payments to reduce this deficit have been paid throughout the period. Due to the current volatility of the
Bonds Market, it is likely that this deficit will continue to increase despite the payments having been made.

The Trustees consider that in addition to the LGPS Pension Scheme, the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Trust are:

. Maintaining standards of education,examination and key stage outcomes, whilst responding to continual
Covid 19 uncertainties.
° Complying with, and ensuring updaied knowledge of changing legislative requirements relating to,

employment law, GDPR legislation, equality and discrimination guidance, Companies House and HRMC
requirements and, child protection and safeguarding requlations.
. Future financial viability for pay award recommendations from both the Local Governments and Teacher's
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

pay review hodies.

. Recruitment and retention of experienced staff.

. Continued increase in the Local Government Pension Scheme Liability.
The key controls used by the Trust include:

. Detailed terms of reference for all Committees of the Trust.

. A programme of appeinting Trustees to be members of every LGC.

. Formal agendas for the Board and Committess.

Schemes of Delegation and formal Financial Regulations.

Formal written policies.

Clear authorisation and approval levels.

Policies and procedures required by law to protect the vulnerable.
High quality appointments to all posts within the Trust.

The Trustees, CEQ and Executive Committee members continue to monitor the rigks that the Trust faces, and
addresses these risks through the continued monitoring of the Trust's Risk Management Policy.

Fundraising

Many of the Trust academies underiake charity fundraising events led by the student bedies within their schools;
these evenis can take many forms from, non-uniform days or fundraising for national events such as ‘Red Nose
Day' or BBC Children in Need. The monies are obtained from sponsorship from family and friends or donations
directly made by the students and their families. All event contributions are voluntary and no students are
excluded from taking part in events by not contributing.

All funds raised from these events are recorded separately within the Trust's accounting system and are paid
directly to the identified charity.

Due to the continuing Covid -19 restrictions, no fundraising took place during this accounting period.

The Trust has not received any complaints regarding its charity collections, and does not undertake any process
which would intimidate, exclude, or apply undug pressure t¢ any person to donaie funds. There are no
fundraising activities undertaken with external providers.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

] nergy c;)‘r;su‘h"ip ion useduto ca!cu ate ions { 13,898,245 - ' “1 1,847007
Energy cansumption break down (kWh) {optional)

* gas, 9,816,836 7,820,785
e electricity, 4,045,028 3,938,738
s fransport fuel 36,381 87,486
Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2Ze

Gas consumption 1,798.1 1,438.0
Qwned transport — mini-buses 3.9 4.1
Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Purchased electricity 858.9 918.3
Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Business travel in employee owned vehicles 49 17.4
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 2,665.7 2377.8
Intensity ratio
Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.250 0.231

Quantification and Reporting Methodology

We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG Reporting
Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2021 UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

Intensity measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per pupil, the recommended ratio
for the sector.

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency

The Trust is commitied to reducing emissions and this year has seen the implementation of the following energy efficiency
measures:

The BMS system hag been upgraded at Monkwick Junior School, improving the ability to contro! heating efficiently.
«  Convector heaters have been replaced to new, more efficient models with improved controls at Monkwick Infant
School (5 classrooms) and Thomas Lord Audley School (2 classrooms).

The roofing has been replaced at Philip Morant School & College with improved insutation, resulting in a lower U-
value from 0.35 to 0.18 W/m?K. Along with improved glazing, this is estimated to save 56,175 kWh per year.
Glazing has been replaced at Philip Morant School & College {in the gym) and Thomas Lord Audley Schoaol (the
whele main building ground floor) resulling in improved insulation and air tightness.

Hot water cylinders have been replaced to new more efficient mode!s at Colne Community School & College, St
Helena Schoaol and Monkwick Infant School, which has also included the removal of some point of use heaters.
External doors have been replaced at Stanway School and Alton Park Primary School for improved aluminium
insulated doors, reducing heat losses.

Fluorescent light fittings have been replaced with energy efficient LEDs at St Helena School (120 LED panels),
Thomas Lord Audley School (82 LED panels), Stanway School (768 LED panels), Philip Marant School (120 LED
panels) and Menkwick Infant School (98 LED panels), resulting in more efficient electricity usage.

Plans for Future Periods

The Board of Trustees has undertaken a full review of the needs of The Sigma Trust and its academies and
have established a Strategic Improvement Plan, however, although the Trustees and Executive Team continue
to aspire to deliver these objectives, the effect of the continuing Covd-19 pandemic and the uncertainty around
when the virus may lead to a normal operating phase, many of these objectives will continue to be reviewsd
throughout the year and adjusted to meet the circumstances during the peried.

Core Objectives

« Review curriculum intent,
implementation and impact in light of
experience of new Ofsted framework.

Success Criteria

All academies achieve Progress 8
outcomes that are above average

Strategic Intent
To ensure that the curriculum models
operating in all secondary schools
maximise Progress 8 outcomes, whilst

maintaining a broad and balanced offer
for all students,

= Review and adjust curriculum models
as required in light of Covid to support
students catch up on missed learning.

within each "bucket" and for all groups

of students within a broad and balance
curriculurn that also promotes student's
happiness and well-being

To ensure that leadership is effective
and with sufficient capacity to drive
forward improvements in all academies
and within the central team

« Develop talent management
strategies to ensure succession
planning is fikmly in place.

The Sigma Trust has the capacity to
support existing schools and possible
further expansion and leadership is
strong in all academies.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

To ensure that all schaols maintain
financial viability by delivering in year
balanced budgets, manage reserves
and a 5-year strategic plan.

= Fully review impact of the pandemic
on the Trust finances and put in place
any necessary recovery plans.

All academies are able to deliver in
year balanced budgets and have
identified use of their "capital" reserves
linked to a long-term strategic plan.

To strengthen governance at all levels
across the Trust

* To engage with an external body to
complete a governance review.» Seek
to recruit more Local Governors with an
education background to serve on
l.ocal Governance Committees

The Board of Trustees and egch LGC
has governors with the relevant levels
of skills and expertise and with
effective succession planning.

Funds held as Custodian Trustee on behalf of others

Funds held on behalf of the Area Planning Group are £9,298.77, These are accounted for within The Stanway

School accounts.
Auditor

Insofar as the Trustees are aware.

s There is no relevant audit information of which the Charitable Company’s auditor is unaware
¢« The Trusiees have taken ali steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Trustees undertook a tender review exercise in 2018 for the provision of the Trust’'s external auditors.

The Trustees' report, incorporating a strategic repoert, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the

company directors, on

Nick Pavitt
{Chair of Trustees)

A Decambnr 2021

and signed on its behalf by:
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Sigma Trust has an effective
and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss,

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook, Competency
framework for Governors and the NGA's 10 questions for multl academy trusts.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the reguirements and responsibililies assigned to it in the funding
agreement between The Sigma Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for
reporting to the board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the
Statement of Trustees' responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 10 times duting the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Nick Pavitt, Chair 9 10
Steve McGrath, Vice Chair g 10
Lyn Wright, Chief Executive Officer and 10 10
Accounting Officer

Adrian Leggett 5 10
Carol Carlsson Browne 10 10
Bradley Powell 7 10
Kay Maddox-Daines 5 10
Clive Bull 10 10
Sue Hammond 7 10
Bharat Parmar 0 1
Stephen Wyatt 10 10

The Trustees have continually monitored and amended the Scheme of Delegation and Governance Structures to
ensure robust governance and clear lines of delegated responsibilities are established between the Board of
Trustees and the Local Governance Committees.

The Trust Board receive monthly management reports from the Finance Officers along with regular updates on
all finance leases and contracts entered into over £5k, cash flow forecasts, payroli KPls and significant variances
to budgets .

The Trustees created a third Trustee Commitiee in September 2019, called the Standards Committee, aimed at
ensuring a greater level of debate and scrutiny is placed on the academies’ performance outcomes, pupil
exclusion, attendance data and SEN provision. Reports are provided by Trust senior Officers which allows
scrutiny and challenge from the committee members.

The Trustees undertook a full review of the Governance structure and membership of the NETT teacher training
schema, which ied to the newly established ITT Strategic Committee.

During the year the Trustees reviewed their performance against the NGAs 10 duestions for Multi Academy
Trusts.

For the Financial year 2020-21 the Board now consists of the following sub-commiitees;

Trust Finance Committee

Trust Audit & Risk Committee

Trust Standards Committee

Trust ITT Strategic Commitiee (Established at the March 2020 Beard meeting}
Combined LGC for Alton Park Junior School and Holland Park Primary School
Clacton County High School LGC

St Helena School LGC

The Colne Community School & College LGC

Combined LGC for The Stanway School and The Thomas Lord Audley School
Combined LGC for Monkwick Infant & Nursery School and Monkwick Junior School
Combined LGC for Philip Morant School & College and Paxman Academy
Harwich & Dovercourt High School LGC
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

The following training sessions were identified from the previcusly completed skills audit and delivered in the
2020-2021 academic year:

Ofsted & the Governors’ roles in relation to Ofsted inspections
Evaluating the impact of PPG Strategies

The Curriculum & Governors' roles in relation to the curriculum
Attendance & behaviour

Exclusions and referrals

*« & & e @

During the Autumn term of the 2021-22 academic year, the Headteachers undertook, as part of their CPD, three
planned seminars with an external consultant:

o Being prepared for the Ofsted visits in the Autumn Term and discussions with inspectors on how leaders
are managing the full return to education

. The curriculum

. Disadvantaged pupils and catching-up

The Trustees will undertake its next self-evaluation throughout the Autumn 2021 and Spring 2022 terms.

The Finance Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. The Committee met 4 times in the
financial year and undertook the following key actions.

Received Monthly Management Accounts

Scrutinised management accounts at each and every meeting

Agreed to expenditure within its delegated power and made recommendations to the full Board
Reviewed and recommended to the Board appcintment of the Auditors

Received and challenged Trust benchmarking documents

Received reporis on the Current and forecast of student numbers

Monitored the use and impact of the School Condition Allocation and schools’ Devolved Formula Capital
Received regular updates on the proposed sale of The Grange and expansions at both The Colne
Community School and Clacton County High School.

. Received updates and reports on the Covid Emergency Dispensation Register and impact on the Trusts
finances.

e = & ® & &« = =

Attendance at meetings of the Finance Committee in the 2020-21 year was as follows.

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Bradley Powell 2 4

Steve McGrath (Vice Chair) 4

Lyn Wright {CEO & Accounting Officer) 4 4

Clive Bull 4 4

Carol Carlsson Browne 4 4

Adrian Leggett (Chair) 4 4

The Audit and Risk Committee is a sub-committee of the main board of Trusiees. The Committee met 4 times in
the financial year and undertook the following key acticons.

. Agreed and challenged the risk profile scoring of the Trust Risk Management Policy
. Scrutinised and challehged the Internal auditor's reports
. Received reports on the Trust’s Estate Management Condition surveys
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Governance (continued)

. Received and challenged reports from the Trust's Chief Network Officers
. Agreed and challenged a suite of policies linked to GDPR legislation and cutstanding and new insurance

claims
Attendance at meetings of the Audit and Risk Cemmitiee inthe 2020-21 year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

Bradley Powell

Steve McGrath (Vice Chair)
Kay Maddox-Daines

Clive Bull

Sue Hammeoend

PN SR )
S hARSA

Lyn Wright (CEO and Accounting Officer) attended the Audit and Risk Committee in her capacity as CEO and
not as a Trustee.

The Standards Committee is also a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. The Committee met 3 times
in the financial year and undertook the following key actions.

J Received and challenged reports from the Director of Education on the Trust’s school improvement offer

. Received and challenged reports from the Primary Executive Lead on the performance and school
improvement offer for our Primary and Junior Academies.

. Received and challenged reports from the Director of Safeguarding on the Trust's attendance, behavioural
and safeguarding analytics and improvement strategies

. Received and challenged school Pupil Premium Grant plans, Covid 19 catch up plans and the cutcomes

from independent reviews carried out on the impact and quality of education for PPG.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Standards Commiittee in the 2020-21 year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

GCarol Garisson Browne 3 3
Sue Hammond 2 3
Kay Maddox-Daines 2 3
Nick Pavitt 3 3
Stephen Wyatt (Chair) 3 3
Lyn Wright 3 3

The ITT Strategic Committee is a sub-committee of the main board of Trustees. The newly established
Committee met once in the financial year and undertook the following key actions.

. Reviewed and adopted the 2020-2021 Development Plan

. Received and challenged reports from the programme Director on the performance, finances and offer for
the scheme

. Received and challenged reports on guality assurance reviews fram various members of the strategic
board.

Attendance at meetings of the ITT Strategic Committee in the 2020-21 year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
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Governance (continued)

Carcl Carlsson Browne (Chair) 1 1
Sue Hammond 1 1
Lyn Wright 1 1

Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has a responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust's
delivers good value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for meney
refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the board of Trustees where value for money can be
improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Academy
Trust's has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

. Undertaking a number of contractual reviews across the estates department leading to joint procurement
of a number of statutory inspections including; Gas and Plant Servicing, Security and Fire servicing
reducing costs across the Trust by c£35k per annum.

s Working in partnership with Essex County Council and the Crown Commercial Service, to receive £106k
of section 106 monies to replace two failing classroom buildings with a net zero two classroom building
and an enhanced mulii use play area for the EYFS students at the Holland Park Primary Scheol.

. Carried out internal and external reviews on the ICT infrastructure sading to two whole trust joint
procurement exercises procuring over 600 devices saving an estimated 30% against individual
procurement activities.

The purpose of the systeim of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in The Sigma Trust for the year 1st
September 2020 to 31st August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial
statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust's is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Academy Trust's’s significant risks that has been in place for the year 1st September 2020 to 31st August 2021
and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed
by the Board of Trustees.

The risk and control framework
The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management

information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:
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The risk and control framework {continued)

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;

. regular reviews by the Finance Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the
forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

. setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

. clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital invesiment) guidelines;

. identification and management of risks;

The Board cf Trustees has decided to employ Pster Standing FCCA as internal auditor for 2020-21.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Academy Trust's's financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

. Review of Trust Financial Statements as at 31 August 2020, management letter internal action plan,

A review of the payroll procedures relating to starters,

A review of the payroll procedures relating to leavers,

A review of the monthly payroll operation, and

A review of the processing of monthly payroll outputs.

A review of the PAYE gusstionnaire complsted by the Finance Team for a HMRC review

A review of the HMRC Worksheet in relation to the treatment of VAT of external lettings for a HMRC
review

The approved schedule of works and key areas of review listed above, has been fully completed and reported to
the Audit & Risk Committee during the financial year.

On a guarterly basis, the internal auditor reports to the Board of Trustees through the Audit and Risk committee
on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Trustees' financial responsibilities and
prepares an annual summary report to the commitiee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings,
recommendations and conclusions to help the committee censider actions and assess year on year progress.

The internal auditor has delivered the schedule of work as planned, and no material control issues have arisen
as a result of the work undertaken.

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has respensibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the

system of internal control, During the year in question the review has been informed by:

Reviews by the internal auditor

the work of the external auditor

Findings of the Finance Committee

Findings of the Audit & Risk Gommittee

Review and completion of the established Risk Analysis Profile

The work of the Trust's Chief Operations and Finance Officer, the Trust's Management Accouniant as well

as other Senior Leadership Team members from within The Sigma Trust academies who have

responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

. the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust's who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Finance Commitiee and Audit and Risk Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure
continuous improvement of the system is in place.
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Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustess on
their behalf by:

Nick Pavitt
Chair of Trustees

qbuwbr doay

Lyn Wright
Accounting Officer

and signed on

Page 22




THE SIGMA TRUST
(A company limited by guaraniee)

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of The Sigma Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy board of
Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropristy and non-
compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy, under the funding agreement in
place between the academy and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had
due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

| confirm that | and the academy board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
- all funds by the academy, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
academy's funding agreament and the Academises Financial Handbook 2020.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of
Trustees and ESFA,

LP(L&-JU/

Lyn Wright
Accounting Officer

Date: 0‘ D ! 202_(
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statemenss for each financial . Under company law, the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

. observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2020 to 2021;

. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; '

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

charitable company will continug in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuting grants received from ESFA/DFE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on

4 DW 2°?-l and signed on its behalf by:

Nick Pavitt
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
SIGMA TRUST

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Sigma Trust (the 'academy') for the ysar ended 31 August 2021

which comptise the Statement of financial activities, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash flows and the

related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has

been applied in thelr preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting

Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland', the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts
" Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the academy's affairs as at 31 August 2021 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} (ISAs (UK)} and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including
the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Ih auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any matetial uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the academy’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months frem when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Cur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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Other information

The other information comprises the infermaticon included in the Annual report other than the financial statements
and our Auditors' report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the
Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Qur
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be maiterially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

[n our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

] the Trusiees' report and the Strategic report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the academy and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of Trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Trustees' responsibilities statement, the Trustees {who are also the directors of the
academy for the purposes of company law) are responsibie for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the academy's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, maiters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the academy or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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THE SIGMA TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
SIGMA TRUST (CONTINUED)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to aobtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with I1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material If, individually or in the aggregats, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregutarities, including fraud, are instances of non-comgpliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, cutlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below:

The engagement pariner ensured the engagement team had the necessary skills and knowledge to identify
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Trust and
for those that are most significant, we enguired into how management ensures compliance is maintained.

We identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to the DfE/ESFA
regulatory industry that the Academy operates in. This effects the ability to continue trading as an Academy
Trust. Other relevant laws and regulations of note include health and safety.

Enquiry and review of the entity's transactions was undertaken to highlight any instances of penalties, fines or
legal activity which could suggest non-compliance with laws and regulations. There was no contradictory
evidence found.

We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial
statements including the Companias Act 2008, Accounts Directions and Charities SORP.

We evaluaied management's incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial
statements (inciuding the risk of override of controls) and determined that the principal risks were related to
the override of delegated authorities and the misappropriation of grant funding.

In response, we incorporated testing of procurement and expenditure and any other entries at risk of falling
outside of delegated authorities.

Scrutiny of unusual transactions and analytical procedures were used to help identify risk factors in monies
received and expended during the year.

It is also stated, as a reminder, that the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests
with both management and those charged with governance of the Trust.

A further desctiption of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This desctiption forms part of our
Auditors’ report.
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THE SIGMA TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
: SIGMA TRUST (CONTINUED)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the academy's members, as & body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors’ report and for no other purpese. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy and its
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

v

Daniel Aldworth (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of
Griffin Chapman
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors

4 & 5 The Cedars
Apex 12

Old Ipswich Road
Colchester

Essex

CO7 7QR

Date: | bu.n.mjaef‘ 2:?_‘
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THE SIGMA TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE SIGMA
TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 12 September 2018 and further to the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to
2021, we have carried out an engagement to cbtain limited assurance about wheather the expenditure dishursed
and income received by The Sigma Trust during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have been
applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them,

This report is made solsly to The Sigma Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter.
Our work has been undertaken so that we mighi state to The Sigma Trust and ESFA those matters we are
required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than The Sigma Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the
conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of The Sigma Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Sigma Trust’s funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education dated 20 December 2018 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from
1 September 2020, for ensuting that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Qur responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform te the authorities which govern them.
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THE SIGMA TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE SIGMA
TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKiLLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and

Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement |etter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and

explanations in order o provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accerdingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken comprised:

a) Analyvtical review as part of the consideration of whether general activities of the academy trust are within
the academy trusts framework of authorities

b) Confirmation that items have been appropriately authorised in accordance with the academy trust's
delegated authorities. Confirmation thai the internal delegations have been approved by the governing
body, and conform to the limits set by the Department for Education.

¢) Performing of sample testing of expenditure & procurement and review against specific terms of grant
funding within the funding agreement.

d) Review and testing of the systems surrounding the management of related party transactions.

e) Consideration of governance activities in line with ESFA expectations.

The extent of work performed was based upon our professional judgement, informed by the assessment of the
risk of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance. '

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which

govern them.

Daniel Aldworth Reporting Accountant
Gtiffin Chapman
Chartered Accountants

4 & 5 The Cedars
Apex 12

Old Ipswich Road
Colchester

Essex

CO77QR

Date:  |O Decm\hf 202,\
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" THE SIGMA TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Income from:
Conations and capital
grants 3 80 - 3,308 3,388 7,057
Charitable activities: 4
Funding for the
academy trust’s
educational operations - 64,566 " 64,566 58,486
Teaching schools 35 - 622 - 622 526
Other trading activities 5 705 1,219 - 1,924 2,289
Investments 6 28 - - 28 23
Total income 813 66,407 3,308 70,528 68,381
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities: 8
Academy trust
educational operations 33 68,543 3,241 71,817 66,611
Teaching schools 35 - 530 2 532 471
Total expenditure 33 69,073 3,243 72,349 67,082
Net
income/(expenditure) 780 (2,666) 65 {1,821) 1,299
Transfers between
funds 22 - 244 (244) -
Net movement in
funds before other
recognised :
gains/({losses) 780 (2,422) (179) {1,821) 1,299
Other recognised
gains/(losses):
Actuarial losses on
defined benefit pension
schemes 29 - (1,538) - {1,538) (2,545)
Net movement in
funds 780 (3,960) {179) (3,359) (1,246)
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THE SIGMA TRUST

{A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES {INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)

(CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Note
Reconciliation of
funds: 22
Total funds brought
forward

Net movement in funds

Total funds carried
forward

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds

2021 2021 2021 2021 2020

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

5,240 {39,381) 118,090 83,949 85,195
780 (3,960) (179) {3,359) {1,2486)

6,020 (43,341) 117,911 80,590 83,949

The Statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 37 to 77 form part of these financial statements.
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THE SIGMA TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07926573

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021

Fixed assets

Intangible assets
Tangible assets

Current assets

Stocks
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year

Net current assels

Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than cne year

Net assets excluding pension liability

Defined benefit pension scheme liability
Total net assets

Funds of the academy
Restricted funds;

Fixed asset funds
Resiricted income funds

Restricted funds excluding pension asset

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

Note

15
16

17
18

19

20

29

22
22

22
22

22
22

2021
£000
117,310
117,310
43
2,663
12,110
14,816
(5,379)
9,437
126,747
(53)
126,694
(46,104)
80,590
117,811
2,763
120,674
(46,104)
74,570
6,020
80,590

2020
£000
6
116,691
116,697
41
2,200
11,086
13,327
(5,036)
8,291
124,988
(67)
124,921
(40,972)
83,949
118,090
1,591
119,681
(40,972)
78,709
5,240
83,949
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THE SIGMA TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07926573

BALANCE SHEET {CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021

The financial statements on pages 32to 77 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issug on

Q buﬂ.mjmf 202_( and are signed on their behalf, by:

Nick Pavitt Lyn Wrigh
{Chair of Trustees) (Trustee)

The notes on pages 37 to 77 form part of these financial statements.
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THE SIGMA TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities 24
Cash flows from investing activities 25
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 26, 27

The notes on pages 37 to 77 form part of these financial statements

2021 2020
£000 £000
1,544 1,113
(520) (764)
1,024 349
11,086 10,737
12,110 11,086
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THE SIGMA TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

Accounting policies

1.1

1.2

A surmmary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below,

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the acadsmy, which Is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Chariiies:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland {FRS 102)
{Charities SORP (FRS 102}), the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2008.

The Sigma Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is approptiate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the academy to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the academy has adegquate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy's ability to continue
as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing
the financial statements.
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THE SIGMA TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

Accounting policies {continued}

1.3 Ihcome

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy has entitlement to the funds, the recsipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on ithe Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recegnition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred incomé until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as
a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspeni
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance sheet in the rastricted fixed asset fund. Capital
granis are recognised when there is entitlernent and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (whete there are no performance-related condiiions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Qther income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the academy has provided the goods or services.,

Donated fixed assets (excluding transfers on conversion or into the academy)

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to
measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the doner should be used. The gain is
recognised as 'Income from Donations and Capital Grants' and a corresponding amount is included
in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance
with the academy’s accounting policies.
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THE SIGMA TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.4 Expenditure

1.5

1.6

1.7

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
10 a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs atiributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribuie to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attribuiable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the academy's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the academy apportioned 1o charitable activities.

Ali resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,

Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on dsposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured
reliably by the academy; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the
institution with whom the funds are deposited.

Taxation

The academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, io the extent that such inceme or gains are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

[ntangible assets

Intangible assets costing £10,000 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic
benefiis are probable and the cosi or value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently measurad at cost net of
amortisation and any provision for impairment.

Amaortisation is provided on intangible assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on
a straight-line basis over its expected usefu! life.

Amertisation is provided on the following basis:

Computer software - 25% and 33.3% straight line
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THE SIGMA TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

Accounting policies {continued)

1.8

1.9

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £10,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net
of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful econemic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset
fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on
the relevant assets is charged directly ic the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial
activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on
such assets is charged to the unrestricied fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its
expected useful life, as follows:

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Freehold property - 2% straight line {10% straight line on MUGA)

Long-term leasehold property - 2% straight line

Furniture and equipment - 20% straight line (5% straight line on solar
pansls)

Caomputer equipment - 25% straight line

Motor vehicles - 20% straight line

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged
until they are brought into use and reclassified o freshold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities.

Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving stocks. Cost includes all direct costs and an appropriate propottion of fixed
and variable overheads.

1.10 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

1.11 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account, other
than £6.039 million on maturity periods between one and ten months.
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(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.12 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past
gvent, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy

anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide.

1.13 Financial instruments

The academy only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 18. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value,

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 19 and 20. Taxation and social security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

1.14 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of financial activities on a straight
line basis over the lease term.
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THE SIGMA TRUST
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.15 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
{"TPS" and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are dsfined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the academy in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially leve!l percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabiliiies are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
giscounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at |east triennially
and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, seitlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cast on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the inierest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and iosses.

1.16 Agency arrangements

The Academy Trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA and NCTL.

For the bursary funds, payments received from ESFA and subseguent disbursements to students are
excluded from the statement of financial activities as the Trust does not have control over the
charitable application of funds. The Trust can use up to 5% of the allocation towards its own
administration costs and this is recognised in the statement of financial activities,

For North Essex Teacher Training, bursary payments received from NCTL and subsequent
dishursement 1o students are excluded from the statement of financial activities as the Trust does not
have control over the charitable application of funds.

The funds received and paid and any balances held for all agency arrangements are disclosed in
notes to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

Accounting policies {contihued)

1.17

1.18

1.19

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy at the discretion of the Trustees.

Designated funds comprise unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the Trustees for particular
purposes. The aim and use of each designated fund is set out in the notes to the financial
statements.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

PFI (Private Finance Initiative) premises

The academy trust includes an academy which has a PF| contract for the use of its school
premises, where the responsibility for maintaining and repairing the buildings lies with the PFI
contractor. The rights and ownership of the premises lies with Essex County Council and the school
do not recognise any asset or liability on the balance sheet. The school have the right to occupy the
school premises under the terms of the contract which expires in 2035.

Payments are made during the life of the contract and are charged to revenue as payable.
PF1 credits are treated as general revenue.
The PF! arrangement is recognised in other financial commitments at note 31.

Redundancy costs

Redundancy costs and termination payments are charged to the income statement in the year in
which an irrevocable commitment is made to incur the costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy irust makes estimates and assumptions concsrning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom egual the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumplions, which are disclosed in note 29, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability a 31
August 2021, Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuaticn would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability. ‘

Criticat areas of judgment:

The Academy Trust includes an academy which is subjeci to Private Finance Initiative arrangement for its
use of the school premises. The Trustees have adeopted the accounting treatment in note 31 where this
arrangement is recognised as a financial commitment.

Judgements have been macde on the fixed asset policies over the lives of assets acquired on academies
transfering in to the Academy Trust, in that they will continue to be used following transfer to The Sigma
Trust.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Income from donations and capital grants

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds fundls
2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Donations
Academies transfer in - - - - 4,055
- - - 4,055
Donations 80 - 256 336 19
Capital Grants - - 3,062 3,052 2,983
Subtotal 80 - 3,308 3,388 3,002
Total 2021 80 - 3,308 3,388 7,057

Total 2020 696 (2.294) 8,655 7,057
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Funding for the academy's educational operations

Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2021 20 2020
£000 £000 £000
DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant 54,727 54,727 50,886
Other DfE/ESFA grants
Pupil Premium 2,974 2,974 2,881
UIFSM 112 112 106
Rates Reclaim 318 318 317
PE Grant 76 76 73
Teachers Pay and Pension Grant 2,670 2,670 2,573
FSM Supplementary Grant 153 133 66
Year 7 Catch-up - - 158
Other DE Group grants - - 6
61,030 57,066
Other Government grants
l.ocal Authority SEN income 845 845 639
Other Government grants 1,152 1,152 704
1,097 1,997 1,343
COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)
Catch-up Premium 830 830 -
Coronavirus exceptional support - - 77
Summer Schools programme 368 368 -
FSM additional cost funding 63 63 -
1,261 1,261 77
COVID-19 additional funding (non-DIE/ESFA)
COVID mass test funding 278 278 -
278 278
Total 2021 64,566 64,566 58,486

Total 2020 58,486 58,486

Following the reclassification in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020/21 of some grants received from
the Department of Education and ESFA, the academy's funding for Universal Infant Free School Meals
and Pupil Premium is no longer reported under the Other DfE Group grants heading, but as separaie lines
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Funding for the academy's educational operations (continued)

under the Other DIE/ESFA grants heading. The prior year numbers have been reclassified.

The academy recelved £830,212 of funding for catch-up premium and costs incurred in respect of ths

funding totalled £418,893, with the remaining £411,319 to be spent in 2021/22.

All other COVID funding was fully utilised in the year

Income from other trading activities

Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

2021 2021 2021 2020

£000 £000 £000 £000

Lettings income 196 - 196 190

Music services income - 36 36 38

Trip income - 31 3 348

Catering income - 1,048 1,048 1,055

Other income 509 104 613 658

Total 2021 705 1,219 1,924 2289
Total 2020 805 1,484 2.289

Investment income

Unrestricted Total Total

funds funds funds

2021 2021 2020

£000 £000 £000

Bank interest 28 28 23

Total 2020 28 23
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Expenditure

Staff Costs Premises Other Total Total
2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Educational operations:
Direct costs 41,246 3,252 4,295 48,793 45,808
Allocated support costs 14,515 4,573 3,935 23,023 20,803
Teaching scheol 409 23 100 532 471
Total 2021 56,170 7,848 8,330 72,348 67,082
Total 2020 51,821 7,165 8,096 67,082
Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities
Summary by fund type
Unrestricted  Resiricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Educational operations 33 71,784 71,817 66,611
Total 2020 42 66,569 66,611
Summary by expenditure type
Total Total
Staff costs Depreciation Other cosis funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Educational operations 55,761 3,241 12,815 71,817 66,611
11,747 66,611

Total 2020 51,472 3,392
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Analysis of expenditure by activities

Activities

undertaken Support Total Total
directly costs funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Educational operations 48,793 23,023 71,816 66,611

Total 2020 45,808 20,803 66,611

Analysis of direct costs

Educational Total Total
operations funds funds
2021 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000
Staff costs 41,246 41,246 38,189
Depreciation 3,241 3,241 3,392
Other educaticnal services 514 514 227
Education supplies 1,027 1,027 1,140
Examination fees 657 657 610
Staff development 248 248 181
Educational consuliancy 730 730 908
Other direct costs 200 200 316
Security and transport 121 121 135
Technology costs 809 809 710
48,793 48,793 45,808

45,808

Total 2020 45,808
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Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs

Educational Total Tolal
operations funds funds
2021 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000
Pension finance cost 635 635 641
Staff costs 14,515 14,515 13,283
Recruitment and support 171 171 6
Maintenance of premises and equipment 3,231 3,231 2,390
Cleaning 401 401 329
Rent and Rates 348 348 378
Insurance 229 229 246
Security and transport 32 32 84
Catering 1,028 1,028 999
Technology costs 292 202 331
Utilities 1,203 1,203 1,129
Legal fees - other 42 42 30

Bank interest and charges 1 1 -
Other support cosis 853 853 215
Audit and accountancy 42 42 48
23,023 23,023 20,803

20,803

Total 2020 20.803

Page 50




THE SIGMA TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

10.

11.

Net income/(expenditure)

Net income/{expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease renials
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Amgrtisation of intangible assets
Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Fees paid to auditors for:

- audit
- other services

Staff

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Agency staff costs
Staff restruciuring costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Severance payments

b. Non-statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments

2021 2020
£000 £000
228 180
3,246 3,380
6 12

(9)
27 27
15 21
2021 2020
£000 £000
40,295 37,664
3,615 3,370
11,984 10,343
55,894 51,377
248 419
28 25
56,170 51,821
2021 2020
£000 £000
28 25

28 25

There are no non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments in the year (2020: £4,000 and £893),
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Staff (continued)
¢. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy during the year was as follows:

2021 2020
No. No.
Teachers 697 648
Administration and support 796 80z
Managemenit 14 14
1,507 1,464

The average headcount expressed as full-time equivalents was:
2021 2020
No. No.
Teachers 621 574
Administration and support 525 560
Management 14 14
1,160 1,148

d. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:

2021 2020

No. No.

In the band £60,001 - £70,000 28 26

In the band £70,001 - £80,000 14 10

In the band £80,001 - £90,000 4 3

In the band £80,001 - £100,000 4 4

In the band £100,001 - £110,000 1 2

In the band £110,001 - £120,000 - 1
[n the band £120,001 - £130,000 2

e. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy comprise the Trustees and the senior management team
as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and
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11,

12

13.

Staff (continued)_

e. Key management personnel (continued)

employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to

the academy was £738,199 (2020 £746,627).

Central services

The academy has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

Education services

Human resources

Financial services

Legal and Governance services
Operations

The academy charges for these services on the following basis:

The Trust charges for these services at 4.5% (2020: 4.5%,) of the General Annual Grant (including 16-19
allocation for relevant schools) but excluding Bursary and PFl income but including Teachers Pay and

Pension Grant.

The actual amounts charged during the year wers as follows:

Clacton County High Schoo!

Colne Community School and College
Harwich and Dovercourt High School
Monwick Infants School

Monkwick Junior Schooi

Philip Morant School and College

St Helena School

The Stanway School

Thomas Lord Audley School

Alton Park Junior School

Holland Park Primary Schoal
Paxman Academy

Total

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

2021 2020
£000 £000
406 358
300 282
285 264
a4 40
53 54
411 362
244 223
325 279
207 186
89 88
77 68

91 48
2,532 2,252
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14.

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneraticn or has received other benefits from an employment
with the academy. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services
they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.
The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2021 2020

£000 £000

Jeff Brindle, Chief Executive Officer (to Remuneration 0 100-105

31/08/20)

Pension contributions paid 0 25-30

Lyn Wright Chief Executive Officer and Remuneration 125 - 130 0
Accaunting Officer

Pension contributions paid 30-35 0

During the vyear, retirement benefits were agcrling to 1 Trustees (2020 - 1) in respect of defined benefit
pension schemes.

During the year ended 31 August 2021, no Trustee expenses have been incurred (2020 - £225).

Trustees' and Officers’ insurance

The academy has opted into the Department of Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alterative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and
officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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Intangible assets

Computer
software
£000
Cost
At 1 September 2020 27
At 31 August 2021 27
Amortisation
At 1 September 2020 21
Charge for the year 6
At 31 August 2021 27
Net book value
At 31 August 2021 .

At 31 August 2020 6
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THE SIGMA TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

17.

18.

19.

Stocks

Finished goods and goods for resale

Debtors

Due after more than one year
Other debtors

Due within one year

Trade debtors

Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income
Tax recoverable

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

Deferred income

Deferred income at 1 September 2020
Resources deferred during the year
Amounts released from previcus periods

Deferred income at 31 August 2021

2021 2020
£000 £000
43 41
2021 2020
£000 £000
- 57

- 57

51 77
1,324 1,019
713 596
575 451
2,663 2,200
2021 2020
£000 £000
1,092 526
952 870
1,166 1,831
2,169 1,809
5,379 5,036
2021 2020
£000 £000
609 475
514 609
(609) (475)
514 609

Page 58




THE SIGMA TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

18.

20.

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year {(continued)

2021 2020
£000 £000

Deferred income relates to Universal infant free school meais, trip income, nursery fees and rates funding
received in advance.

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2021 2020
£000 £000

Loans 53 67

Colne Community School has a Salix loan for £62,072 in relation to a CIF grant awarded in 2014/15 to
replace windows, to be repaid over 8 years interest free commencing in March 2017. Repayments
commenced in 2017/18. The repayments falling due within one year of £7,759 are included in other
creditors. The lpan is repayable within 5 years,

Harwich and Dovercourt High School has a Salix loan of £44,992 in relation to a CIF grant awarded in
2017/18 to replace windows,repayable over 8 years interest free. Repayments commenced in 2018/19.
The repayments falling due within one year are £5,624 for this loan and are included in gther creditors.
The loan is repayable within 5 years.

Alton Park School has an interest free Salix loan relating io a water distribution project, repayable over 8
years, interest free. Repayments commence in September 2021. The repayments falling due within one
year are £1,680 and are included in other creditors. The balance due after 5 years payable by instalments
is £4,229.
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21.

Financial instruments

Financial assets
Financial assets measured at fair value through income and expenditure
Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities measured at fair value through income and
expenditure

2021 2020
£000 £000
12,110 11,086
1,374 1,152
13,484 12,238
2021 2020
£000 £000
(3,966) (3,624)

Financial assets measured at fair value through income and expenditure comprise bank and cash

balances.

Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost comprise trade debtors and other

debtors.

Financial liabiliies measured at amortised cost comptise trade creditors, accruals, loans and other

creditors.
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22,

Statement of funds

Balance af 1
September
2020

£000

Unrestricted
funds

Designated
funds

MUGA
replacement 104

Income Expenditure

£000

£000

Transfers
infout
£000

40

Gains/
{Losses}
£000

Balance at
31 August
2021
£000

144

General funds

General Funds -
all funds 5,136

813

(33)

(40)

5,876

. Total

Unrestricted
funds 5,240

813

(33)

T

6,020

Restricted
general funds

General Annual
Grant 1,280

North Essex

Teacher Training 215
Pupil premium -
Paxman

Academy
funding 96

COVID Catch-up
funding -

Summer
Schools
programme -

FSM additional
funding -

Pension reserve {40,972)

61,405
622
2,973
146

830

368

63

(58,234)
(532)
(2,947)
(71)

(419)

(368)

(63)
(6,439)

(2,572)

(29)

2,845

(1,538)

1,879
305
26
142

411

(46,104)

(39,381)

66,407

{69,073}

244

(1,538)

(43,341)

Restricted fixed
asset funds
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22,

Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed
assets 116,691 - (3,237} 3,856 - 117,310
Intangible fixed
assets 6 - (6) - - -
ESFA Capital
grants 1,308 3,308 - (4,015) - 601
Sigma Sixth -
CCHS 85 - - (85) - -
118,080 3,308 (3,243) (244) - 117,911
Total Restricted
funds 78,709 69,715 (72,316) - {1,538) 74,570

Total funds 83,949 70,528 (72,349) - (1,538) 80,520

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

During the year £244,029 was transfered from restricted funds to restricted fixed asset funds regarding the
amount of GAG used to cover the capital additions not covered by capital grant income.

The trust are designating £20,000 per annum over 10 years towards the fufure replacement of the Mulii
Use Games Area - MUGA - at The Stanway School, and £20,000 per annum for the MUGA a1 Philip
Morant School (effective from 1 January 2019).

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

The General Annual Grant restricted fund includes all restricied GAG income and related expenditure and
is used for the norma! running of the academy.

Pupil Premium restricted fund represents funding received and related expenditure.

The Sigma Trust operates North Essex Teacher Training and the fund includes all grant and other income
and related expenditure.

Sigma Sixth relates to income and expenditure, both capital and revenue, in relation to establishing the
new sixth form at Tendring Education Centre.

Paxman Academy funding relates to specific funding and expenditure relating to the new Free School.
The pension reserve represents the deficit on the LGPS pension scheme.

The restricted fixed asset fund represents the cost or valuation of fixed assets held by the academy trust
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22,

Statement of funds (continued)

and any unspent capital grant funding.

LA capital grants shows funding for projects funded by the local authority,

Unrestricted funds are thase arising from unrestricted activities and can be applied for any purpose.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2021,
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22,

Statement of funds {continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Balance al Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 Augusi
2019 Income Expenditure infout {Losses) 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Unrestricted
funds
Desighated
funds
MUGA
replacement 64 - - 40 104
General funds
Generai Funds -
all funds 4,806 1,623 {42) {1,151) - 5,136
Total
Unrestricted
funds 4,870 1,623 {42) (1.111) 5,240
Restricted
general funds
General Annual
Grant 1,173 57,214 (54,827) (2,281) - 1,279
North Essex
Teacher Training 160 526 {471) - 215
Pupil premium - 2,880 {2,880) -
Paxman
Academy
funding 32 146 (62) {19) - 97
Sigma Sixth -
CCHS - 50 (122) 72 -
Pension reserve {33,080} (2,614) (5,286) 2,553 (2,645) {40,972)
{31,715) 58,202 (63,648) 325 {2,545) (39,381)
Tangible fixed
assets 110,981 5477 {3,380) 3,613 116,691
Intangible fixed
assels 18 - (12} - 6
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22.

Statement of funds (continued)

Balance al Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 Augusi
2019 Income  Expenditure in‘out {Losses) 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
ESFA Capital
grants 1,042 2,857 - {2,591) 1,308
LA Capital
grants - 33 - (33) -
Sigma Sixth -
CCHS - 288 - {203) - 85
112,041 8,655 {3,392) 7886 118,090
Total Restricted
funds 80,326 66,857 {67,040) 1,111 {2,545) 78,709
Total funds 85,196 68,380 {67,082) - {2,545) 83,949
Total funds analysis by academy
Fund balances at 31 August 2021 were allocated as follows:
2021 2020
£000 £000
Clacton County High Schoal 1,394 1,248
Colne Community Schocl & College 1,235 1,084
Harwich and Dovercourt High School 436 346
Monkwick Infants School 345 382
Monkwick Junior School 163 143
North Essex Teacher Training 292 215
Philip Merant School & College 1,028 597
St Helena School 541 453
The Sigma Trust Central Services 483 259
The Stanway School 1,361 934
Thomas Lord Audley School 229 145
Alton Park Junior School 478 604
Holland Park Primary School 415 332
Paxman Academy 383 89
Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve 8,783 6,831
Restricted fixed asset fund 117,911 118,090
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22,

Statement of funds (continued}

Pensicn reserve

Total

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching &
educational
support
staff costs
£000
Clacton Gounty
High School 6,538
Colne
Community
School &
College 4,624
Harwich and
Dovercourt High
School 4,599
Monkwick
Infants School 871
Monkwick Junior
School 1,039
North Essex
Teacher Training 342
Philip Morant
School &
College 6,394
St Helena
School 3,746
The Sigma Trust
Central Services 575
The Stanway
School 5,089
Thomas Lord
Audley School 3,290

Other
support
staff costs
£000

1,341

1,481

1,509
373
202

58

1,985
1,200
2,060
1,333

1,237

Educational
supplies
£000

161

126

106
16

32

108
98
26

123

92

Other costs
excluding
depreciation
' £000

3,179

896

1,077
199
155

112

1,676
1,068

521
1,041

201

2021 2020
£000 £000
{46,104) {40,972)
80,590 83,942
Total Total
2021 2020
£000 £000
11,219 10,222
7,227 6,917
7,291 6,996
1,459 1,437
1,518 1,639
519 471
10,163 9,425
6,202 5,671
3,182 3,119
7,596 6,823
5,520 4. 828
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22,

23.

Statement of funds (continued)

Teaching &
educational Other Other costs
support support Educational excluding Total Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Alton Park
Junior School 1,848 647 49 315 2,859 2,661
Holland Park
Primary School 1,261 540 34 230 2,065 1,828
Paxman
Academy 1,370 428 57 431 2,286 1,753
Academy 41,596 14,574 1,035 11,901 69,106 63,690
Analysis of net assets hetween funds
Analysis of net assets between funds - current year
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets - 117,310 117,310
Current assets 6,020 8,195 601 14,816
Creditors due within one year (5,379) - (5,379)
Creditors due in more than one year - {53) - (53)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (46,104) (46,104)
Total 6,020 (43,341) 117,911 80,590
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23.

Analysis of net assets beiween funds (continued)

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2020 2020 2020 2020

£000 £000 £000 £000

Tangible fixed assets - - 116,691 116,691
Intangible fixed assets - - 6 6
Debtors due after more than one year 57 - 57
Current assets 5240 6,637 1,393 13,270
Creditors due within one year - {5,036) (5,036)
Creditors due in more than one year - (67) - (67)
Provisions for liabilities and charges {40,972} - (40,972)
5,240 (39,381) 118,090 83,949

Total
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25.

Reconciliation of net (expenditure)/income to net cash flow from operating activities

2021 2020

£000 £000
Net (expenditure)/income for the year (as per Statement of financial
activities) {1.821) 1,299
Adjustments for:
Amortisation 6 12
Depreciation 3,246 3,380
Capital grants from DiE and other capital income (3,308) (2,826)
Interest recsivable {28) (23)
Defined benefit pension scheme obligation inherited - 2.614
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable 2,959 2,092
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 635 641
Increase in stocks (2) {8)
Increase in debtors {463) {42)
Increase/(decrease) in creditors 329 {548)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets {9) -
Transfer in of academies ~ {(6,668)
Reserves transfered in on academies joining the trust - 996
Capital grants transfered on academies joining the trust - 194
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,544 1,113
Cash flows from investing activities

2021 2020

£000 £000
Interest receivable 28 23
Purchasse of tangible fixed assets (3,957) {3,613)
Proceeds from the sale of tangible fixed assets 12 -
Capital grants from DfE Group and LA 3,308 2,826
Asset under construction transfered to revenue expenditure 89
Net cash used in investing activities {520) (764)
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28,

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2021 2020
£000 £000
Cash in hand and at bank 12,110 11,086
Total cash and cash equivalents 12,110 11,086
Analysis of changes in net debt
At1
September - At 31
2020 Cash flows August 2021
£000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 11,086 1,024 12,110
11,086 1,024 12,110
Capital commitments
2021 2020
£000 £000
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements
1,031

Acquisition of tangible fixed assets 165
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Pension commitments

The academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pensich Scheme
{LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Essex Pension Fund. Both are muiti-employer
defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the perlod ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2019.

Contributions amounting to £1,037,540 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2021 (2020 -
£1,645,566) and are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies. All teachers have the opticn to opt-cut of the TPS following enrclment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which hoth the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Aciuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Gost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2016. The valuation repert was published by the Depariment for Education on 5 March 2019.
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

. employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy)
. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPl, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real sarnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.
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Pension commitments (continued)
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £6,202,323 (2020 - £5,716,280).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensichs website
(https/Awww.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
academy has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.
The academy has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The fotal contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2021 was £3,547,000 (2020
- £3,208,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £2,845,000 (2020 - £2,553,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £ 702,000 {2020 - £656,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are
22.7% -25.0% per cent for employers and 5.5% - 12.5% per cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of Siate for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assumptions

Essex Pension Fund

2021 2020

% %

Rate of increase in salaries 3.90 3.27
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.90 2.27
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.65 1.60
Inflation assumption {(CPI} 2.90 2.27
Commutiation of pensions to lump sums 50.00 50.00

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future mprovements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2021 2020
Years Years
Retiring foday
Males 21.6 21.8
Females 23.6 23.8
Retiring in 20 years
Males 22.9 23.2
Females 25.1 26.2
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Pension commitments (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

Essex Pension Scheme

Biscount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease
CPI rate +0.1%

CPlrate -0.1%

Share of scheme assets

The academy's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities

Gilts

Corporate bonds

Property

Cash and other liquid assets

Alternative assets and other managed funds

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £7,608,000 {2020 - £736,000).

The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows:

Current service cost
Interest income

Interest cost
Administrative expenses

Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities

2021 2020
£000 £000
2,120 1,743
(2,174) (1,787)
(2,174) (1,787)
3,394 2,585
(163) 32
163 (39)
2021 2020
£000 £000
26,985 19,632
1,063 1,352
1,959 1,771
2,942 2,458
1,176 860
8,034 5,602
42,159 31,675
2021 2020
£000 £000
(5,782) (4,627)
529 514
(1,164) (1,155)
(22) (18)
(6,439) (5,286)

Page 73




THE SIGMA TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

29,

30.

Pension commitments {(continued)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

At 31 August 42,159

Operating lease commitments

2021 2020
£000 £000
At 1 September 72,647 57,321
Transferred in on existing academies joining the trust - 4,889
~ Current service cost 5,782 4,627
Interest cost 1,164 1,155
Employee contributions 702 666
Actuarial lossas 8,617 4,728
Benefits paid (649) (729}
At 31 August 88,263 72,647
Changes in the fair value of the academy's share of scheme assets were as follows:
2021 2020
£000 £000
At 1 September 31,675 24241
Transferred in on existing academies joining the trust - 2275
Interest income 529 514
Actuaria! gains 7,079 2,183
Employer contributions 2.845 2,553
Employee contributions 702 656
Benefits paid (649) (729)
Administrative expenses (22) (18)
31,675

At 31 August 2021 the academy had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases as follows:

2021 2020

£000 £000

Not later than 1 year 227 200
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 422 599
649 799
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32.

33.

Other financial commiiments

Clacton County High School has a continuing PFI commitment relating to its school premises. The annual
contribution for the current year was £1,683,175. (2020: £1,683,369).

The liability from school revenue towards this figure for the year ended 31 August 2022 will be £1,015,250.
This commitment is expected to continue for the life of the PFI agreement which expires in 2035. The
actual commitment is dependent on elements outside of the school's control and therefore cannot be
accurately disclosed any further forward than one year.

Cther key commitments, in relation to use of premises for Sigma 6th and the Northern Gateway sporis
facilities, total £1,100,520.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member,

Related party transactions

Owing to the nafure of the Trust and the compositicn of the Board of Trustees being drawn from lacal
public and private sector organisations, transactions may fake place with organisations in which the
trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of ail transactions
made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the Trust's financial
regulations and normal procurement procedures relaiing to connected and related party transactions.

Gavin Bradley — a headieacher at one of the Learning Pathways Academy Trust schools - is seconded to
The Sigma Trust as Primary Executive Lead. All related costs are included within the figures seen in the
transactions with Learning Pathways Academy Trust. No salary for Gavin Bradley is recognised in the
accounts of The Sigma Trust to aveid duplication. His salary is disclosed in full in the accounts of
Learning Pathways Academy Trust.

During the year the Trust had iransactions with Learning Pathways Academy. The Trust purchased a
range of setvices totalling £262,245 (2020: £341,896) and supplied services of £nil (2020: £49,338). At
31 August 2021 £nil was owed by the Trust to Learning Pathways Academy (2020: £53,089).

During the year, F Pierson a partner of A Rudd was employed by the trust as a headteacher and was paid
within the normal pay scale for her role and receives no special treatment as a result of their relationship
to an SMT member.

During the year, Mr S. Ling was appointed as a Member of the Sigma Trust. Mr Ling is the father of an
employee who is contracted as a Teacher at the Philip Morant School and College. This employee has
had continuous service at the school since the 1st September 2008 and has received no special
treatment as a result of their relationship to a member.
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Agency arrangements

The academy distributes 16-19 bursary funds 1o students as an agent for ESFA. In the accounting year
ending 31 August 2021 ihe trust received funding of £52,570. £63,244 of funding was distributed. An
amount of £7,506 (2020 £18,180) is included in accruals and deferred income relating to undistributed
funds that are repayable to EFSA.

The academy Is the lead school for North Essex Teacher Training, which distributes training bursaries on
behalf of NCTL. During the accounting year ended 31 August 2021 bursary funding of £550,900 (2020:
£502,000) was received and £531,534 (2020: £501,000) was distributed. The balance of £17,366 (2020:
£4,000) is included in other creditors.
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Teaching school trading account

Income
Direct income

SLE Income
Other direct income

Total direct income
Other income

Total other income
Total income

Expenditure
Direct expenditure

Diréct staff costs
Other direct costs

Total direct expenditure
Other expenditure

Other staff costs
Other depreciation
Utilities

Rent

Audit and accountancy
Technology costs
Other support costs
Travel expenses

Total other expenditure
Total expenditure

Surplus from all sources
Teaching school balances at 1 September 2020

Teaching school balances at 31 August 2021

2021
£000

595
27

350
77

427

105

2021
£000

(622)

622

532

90
215

305

2020
£000

492
34

293
58

351

120

2020
£000

(526)

526

471

55
160

215

Page 77




